[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Cabinet (Performance
Management) Panel
4 December 2017
Time

5.00 pm

Public Meeting?

YES

Type of meeting

Executive

Venue

Training Room - Ground Floor - Civic Centre, St Peter's Square, Wolverhampton
WV1 1SH

Membership
Chair

Cllr Milkinderpal Jaspal (Lab)

Labour
Cllr Peter Bilson
Cllr Claire Darke
Cllr Steve Evans
Cllr Val Gibson
Cllr Andrew Johnson
Cllr Roger Lawrence
Cllr John Reynolds
Cllr Sandra Samuels OBE
Cllr Paul Sweet
Quorum for this meeting is two Councillors.

Information for the Public
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:
Contact
Tel/Email
Address

Dereck Francis
Tel: 01902 555835 or dereck.francis@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square,
Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:
Website
Email
Tel

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk
democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk
01902 550320

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording, and use of social media in meetings, copies of
which are displayed in the meeting room.
Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports
are not available to the public.

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No.

Title

MEETINGS BUSINESS ITEMS
1

Apologies for absence

2

Declarations of interests

3

Minutes of the previous meeting - 18 September 2017 (Pages 3 - 6)
[For approval]

4

Matters arising
[To consider any matters arising from the minutes of the previous meeting]

DECISION ITEMS (AMBER - DELEGATED TO CABINET (PERFORMANCE
MANAGEMENT PANEL)
5

Housing Managing Agents Performance Monitoring Report – Quarter Two
July 2017 to September 2017 (Pages 7 - 40)
[To review and comment on the quarterly monitoring report]

6

Information Governance Quarter Two and General Data Protection
Regulations Update Report (Pages 41 - 50)
[To review and comment on the quarter two performance and on work currently
being undertaken in preparation for the General Data Protection Regulations]

7

New Outcomes Based Accountability Performance Framework and WV
Insight Portal Update (Pages 51 - 62)
[To received the report]

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 3

Meeting of the Cabinet
(Performance Management) Panel
Minutes - 18 September 2017
Attendance
Members of the Cabinet (Performance Management) Panel
Cllr Milkinderpal Jaspal (Chair)
Cllr Peter Bilson
Cllr Claire Darke
Cllr Steve Evans
Cllr Val Gibson
Cllr Andrew Johnson
Cllr John Reynolds
Employees
Ian Fegan
Dereck Francis
Keith Ireland
Anna Zollino-Biscotti
Lesley Roberts

Head of Communications
Democratic Services Officer
Managing Director
Senior Information Governance Officer
Strategic Director - Housing

Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No.

Title

1

Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Roger Lawrence,
Sandra Samuels OBE and Paul Sweet.

2

Declarations of interests
No declarations of interests were made.

3

Minutes of the previous meeting - 12 June 2017
Resolved:
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 12 June 2017 be approved
as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

4

Matters arising
With reference to Minute No 7. (Outcome Based Accountability and Outcome Based
Budgeting Update), Ian Fegan, Head of Corporate Communications undertook to
update the Chair on the arrangements for the workshop with Dr Tony Munton.

Page 3

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

5

Housing Managing Agents Performance Monitoring Report - Quarter One April
- June 2017
Lesley Roberts, Strategic Director, City Housing presented the report on the
performance of Wolverhampton Homes (WH) and the Tenant Management
Organisations (TMOs) in managing and maintaining council owned properties during
quarter one of the 2017-2018 financial year.
In response to the request made at the last meeting, the Strategic Director reported
on the actions put in place to monitor and improve performance of Dovecotes TMO
Board in relation to rent arrears. Performance had improved during the quarter and
Council employees would continue to work with the TMO on its performance. The
Strategic Director also informed the Panel that the Council had made sure that TMOs
are clear about their responsibilities, in terms of fire safety, for the properties they
manage on behalf of the Council. The Housing Service had also held sessions with
the TMOs to review their policies and plans.
In response to a question about performance on abandoned calls, the Strategic
Director explained that the service had tried to encourage tenants to use digital
options as the means of contact. The staffing for direct call handling was adjusted in
line with this approach. The position had been reviewed and more employees had
now been moved into this area. However, the Service was seeking to strike a
balance between providing a telephone service and directing tenants to digital
options. The Director reported that she was 100% committed to providing some form
of telephone service. Councillor Peter Bilson added that the performance had been
discussed at the Monitoring Group. The Council wanted to encourage digital
transactions but it was a judgement call on the balance between providing a
telephone service and digital options. The Monitoring Group would be keeping this
area under review.
The Strategic Director also briefed the Panel on the Council’s preparedness and
Wolverhampton Homes response to the introduction of Universal Credit, a new single
monthly payment for people of working age, and people who are on low income or
out of work.
Resolved:
1. That the performance of the housing management agents for quarter one
2017-2018 be noted.
2. That an update report on TMO’s plans for the introduction of Universal Credit
be submitted to the next meeting.

6

Corporate Plan Performance Monitoring Update
Ian Fegan, Corporate Communications Manager gave a verbal update on progress
since the last meeting in implementing the Council’s approach to outcome based
accountability and outcome based budgeting. A detailed report would be submitted
to the next meeting of the Performance Management Panel on 4 December 2017.
Resolved:
That the report be noted.

Page 4

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

7

Exclusion of the press and public
Resolved:
That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of
business as it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within
the paragraphs 3 and 7 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

8

Information Governance Performance Report - Quarter 1 2017/2018
The Chair noted the reasons why the report had been included on the closed session
of the agenda. He asked that for future meetings the information be presented in
such a way as to allow the item to be considered in open session.
Anna Zollino-Biscotti, Information Governance Manager presented the report on the
performance of Information Governance for quarter one (April to June 2017). The
report showed that targets had been maintained for the response to Freedom of
Information/ Environmental Information (FOI) and Subject Access Requests (SARs)
received. The Information Governance Manager also reported that going forward
there would need to be a greater focus on training, particularly in raising awareness
and ensuring that new employees complete the mandatory Protecting Information elearning training module.
Resolved:
That the Information Governance performance figures for 2017/2018 for
Freedom of Information/Environmental Information requests and Subject
Access requests be noted.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 5

Cabinet (Performance
Management) Panel
4 December 2017
Report title

Housing Managing Agents Performance
Monitoring Report – Quarter Two July 2017 to
September 2017

Decision designation

AMBER

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Peter Bilson
City Assets and Housing

Key decision

No

In forward plan

No

Wards affected

All

Accountable director

Lesley Roberts, Strategic Director – City Housing

Originating service

Housing

Accountable employee(s)

Jenny Lewington
Tel
Email

Report to be/has been
considered by

Service Lead, Housing Strategy –
Housing Services
01902 554845
Jenny.Lewington@wolverhampton.gov.uk

N/A

Recommendation(s) for action or decision:
The Cabinet (Performance Management) Panel is recommended to:
1. Review and comment on the performance of the housing management agents for
Quarter Two 2017-2018 and any areas for improvement.

Page 7

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

1.0

Purpose

1.1

The primary purpose of this report is to provide Councillors with an evaluation of the
performance of Wolverhampton Homes and the Tenant Management Organisations
(TMOs) in managing and maintaining Council owned dwellings during the 2017-2018
financial year.

2.0

Background

1.1

This report assists in clarifying and highlighting areas of performance; where
performance data suggests that intervention or revised working may be required or has
been undertaken.

1.2

This report illustrates performance from Quarter Two 2016-2017 to Quarter Two 20172018 inclusively to allow comparison over the year.

1.3 The performance for each of the managing agents is grouped under three headings:
a) Rents management
b) Repairs management
c) Voids and allocations
1.4 Wolverhampton Homes additionally reports on Business Planning, satisfaction with the
handling and outcome of the Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) process, Customer Care and
Estate Services. Stock Investment indicators were previously monitored; however, these
were related to the Decent Homes Programme which ended in 2016-2017.
1.5 Tables indicate both the direction in which performance needs to move for improvement,
and performance trends between the current and the previous quarter.
1.6 Additionally, performance is categorised as:
a) GREEN – where performance is in target and:
(i) Was in target the previous quarter, or
(ii) Was marked as Amber in the previous quarter.
b) AMBER – where performance is:
(i) Off target this quarter and was marked as Green in the previous quarter, or
(ii) In target this quarter and was marked as Red in the previous quarter.
c) RED – where performance is off target and,
(i) Was marked as Amber in the previous quarter, or
(ii) Was marked as Red in the previous quarter, or
(iii) Gives clear cause for concern
The left-hand column of the table will show G, A, R or where there is no data available,
ND.

Page 8

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Governance
1.7

The Housing Strategy Team continues to monitor the governance of the housing
management organisations.

1.8

The Service Lead - Housing Strategy is invited to attend Wolverhampton Homes’ board
meetings as an observer. Wolverhampton Homes’ board, committee and other minutes
and papers are available on request to Council employees.

1.9

The TMOs provide agendas, minutes and other documents from their regular meetings.
Housing Services employees have observed TMO board and committee meetings where
resources have permitted.

1.10

An annual review of the TMOs is conducted and this includes a review of governance,
the next review is scheduled for April 2018.

3.0

Progress for Wolverhampton Homes

3.1

This section gives an outline of Wolverhampton Homes’ performance for Quarter Two
2017-2018. Performance details are available in Appendix 1a and 1b.

3.2

Wolverhampton Homes manages 20,234 properties on behalf of City of Wolverhampton
Council. Generally, good performance has been maintained in the second quarter of the
year and remains good overall. Of the 22 indicators included in this report;
 performance for seventeen of the twenty-two are within target,
 five of the twenty-two indicators are outside of the target; three are within acceptable
tolerance and two are outside of target and tolerance.
Anti-Social Behaviour

3.3

Performance for tenant satisfaction with the anti-social behaviour service has dropped
slightly below target to 96.95%. This is due to three people stating dissatisfaction as WH
were unable to meet these customers’ expectations.

3.4

The percentage of customers satisfied with the outcome of their ASB complaint has
reduced by 1.39% from quarter one to 96.95% in quarter two, remaining within target.
Business Planning

3.5

Performance for ‘average days lost through employee illness’ is within target and
continues to be very good, with the number of days lost at its lowest since quarter three
of 2015-16.
Customer Care

3.6

Wolverhampton Homes’ Digital First Campaign aims to encourage tenants to utilise online facilities for making contact and reporting issues, in turn allowing officer time to be
put to better use, for example, engaging with vulnerable tenants.

Page 9

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.7

Performance is very good for all four indicators in the second quarter of 2017-2018; all
are within target, and two have improved in comparison to both the previous quarter.

3.8

The ‘percentage of calls answered’ indicator was a new indicator adopted for 2017-2018
and so prior to quarter one there was no previous comparable information. In quarter one
performance was 83.40%, this has weakened slightly to 82.50% in quarter two, but
remains well above the target of 55.00%. Performance demonstrates a significant
improvement since changes were made to the call waiting system in October 2016.

3.9

The ‘percentage of calls abandoned’ has reduced dramatically from 2016-2017, and is
firmly within the 15% target. Performance is in target at 3.50%. The telephony system
has been changed, after consultation with tenants, to allow a caller to wait for an answer
rather than having the call disconnected after five minutes. This was originally designed
to encourage people to call back at less busy times.

3.10

Performance for ‘complaints responded to within timescales’ in quarter two is 92.63%
and is on target.

3.11

The indicator ‘percentage of member enquiries responded to within 14 calendar days’ is
also performing very well, with an improvement of 5.22% in comparison to the same
period last year, and over the 92% target.
Health and Safety

3.12

Results for fire safety inspections carried out in low and medium rise blocks has been at
100%, well within target, since at quarter four of 2012-2013. Results for fire safety
inspections carried out in high rise blocks has been maintained at 100%, firmly within
target, since at least the beginning of the 2011-2012 financial year.

3.13

Fire safety assessments continue to be carried out daily in all tower blocks.
Rents Management

3.14

Changes in Housing Benefit brought about by Welfare Reform have had an impact on
resources for Wolverhampton Homes. Some staffing resources have been diverted to
respond to the needs of tenants and the organisation, including income/arrears collection
and the provision of money and debt advice for example undertaking detailed financial
assessments. Partnerships have also been developed, most notably with the CAB and
Refugee and Migrant Centre, providing specialist advice and information which is tailored
to meet the needs of individual households.

3.15

Performance for rents management was good in the second quarter of 2017-2018,
meeting three of the four targets. One indicator has weakened in comparison to the
previous quarter, one has been maintained and two have improved.

3.16

Performance for ‘percentage of rent collected’ has improved in quarter two, compared to
quarter one and remains within target.

Page 10

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.17

‘Percentage of rent arrears of current tenants as a proportion of rent roll’ remains within
the top quartile of benchmarked housing organisations.

3.18

Performance for ‘Tenants with more than seven weeks’ arrears’ is outside of target due
to the increasingly challenging climate, issues include; welfare reform, court entry limits,
levels of unemployment, and pay and benefit constraints.

3.19

Performance for ‘rent arrears of current tenants as a proportion of rent roll’ is on target
again in quarter two despite challenges in rent collection.

3.20

Performance for ‘tenants evicted for rent arrears’ has increased from quarter one to
quarter two, but remains within target. Wolverhampton Homes continues to advise and
support tenants identified as having difficulty in maintaining their tenancy, and the
process of eviction is only taken when all other options have been exhausted.
Repairs Management

3.21

Repairs performance was good in the second quarter, with all three indicators being in
target.

3.22

Performance for the ‘responsive repairs for which an appointment was made/kept’ has
weakened by 0.20% in comparison to the previous quarter, but remains within target.

3.23

Performance for ‘total response repairs completed within target’ has improved by 0.55%
since the last quarter and by 1.26% compared to the previous year.

3.24

Performance for ‘percentages of valid gas certificates for tenanted properties’ is above
target at 99.00% in quarter two.
Voids and Allocations

3.25

Performance for voids and allocations was mostly good in the second quarter of 20172018, with two indicators within target, two outside of target but within the acceptable
tolerance and one off target.

3.26

Performance for the ‘average time taken to re-let standard voids’ has remained the same
from quarter one to quarter two. Performance is slightly below target. New online pretenancy, and revised asbestos removal processes are hoped to have a positive effect in
quarter three.

3.27

Performance for the ‘average time taken to re-let major works voids’ has weakened
slightly from quarter one to quarter two. Performance is slightly below target. New online
pre-tenancy, and revised asbestos removal processes are hoped to have a positive
effect in quarter three.

3.28

The ‘percentage of tenancy offers accepted first time’ remains within the 80% target. This
indicator has been on target for a full three years.

Page 11

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.29

The ‘percentage of rent lost through empty property’ remains within target.

3.30

Throughout the second quarter of 2017-2018 Wolverhampton Homes process for
allocating properties has been monitored using a random sample of cases. No issues
were flagged and adherence to the Council’s allocations policy was demonstrated.

4.0

Progress for Bushbury Hill Estate Management Board (EMB)

4.1

This section gives an outline of Bushbury Hill EMB’s performance for Quarter Two 20172018. Performance details are available in Appendix 2.

4.2

Bushbury Hill EMB manages 826 properties on behalf of City of Wolverhampton Council.
Performance has been good this quarter, with all eight indicators within target. Six have
improved when compared to the previous quarter, and six have improved when
compared to the previous year.
Rents Management

4.3

Performance for rents management was good in the second quarter of 2017-2018, with
targets for all three indicators being met. Two have improved in comparison to the
previous quarter, and two in comparison to the previous year. One indicator has
weakened in comparison to the previous quarter, and one in comparison to the same
period last year.

4.4

BHEMB continue to focus on rent collections, Direct Debits and providing literature on
debts to reduce the ‘percentage of tenants with more than seven weeks (gross) rent
arrears’. The performance for quarter 2 is 1.94%, a weakened performance compared to
quarter 1. However, this is well within the 2.5% target and is an improvement on the
same quarter in 2016-2017. Please note that the Q1 figure has been corrected in this Q2
report.

4.5

No tenants were evicted due to rent arrears during the second quarter of 2017-2018.

4.6

Performance for ‘arrears as a percentage of rent roll’ has weakened by 0.16% in
comparison to the previous quarter, and by 0.01% in comparison to the same period last
year.

4.7

The full roll out of Universal Credit in Wolverhampton takes place in December 2017.
This is likely to have an effect on income collection and rent arrear. The EMB continues
to prepare for this change to the benefits system.

4.8

In terms of preparing for the roll-out of Universal Credit:
a) BHEMB have identified a budget of £45,000 for 2017-202018 to provide s Universal
Support Package to tenants. This includes support to maximise their income, provide
information support and advice, improve tenant’s financial inclusion, promote digital
inclusion and provide routes into training and employment.

Page 12

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

b) The TMO is ensuring staff are prepared for the roll out of Universal Credit:





Ongoing staff training is being provided; dedicated officers will work specifically
on income management and rent collection.
Board members have been briefed and received training.
Communications Strategy has been developed to include information for
tenants (leaflets and social media). These have included specific advice, for
example the need for photographic ID and where to get help.
A dedicated computer has been provided in reception for tenants to use to
access UC (with support 1:1 support if necessary).

c) The TMO has established a number of programmes to support tenants:








Benefit Changes Programme - A team of trained volunteers and 2 staff mentors
have undertaken the benefits changes programme. This programme provides
support to people to enable them to ‘self-assess’ their benefits situation whilst
providing them with necessary information on what to do next. The volunteers
are available at local community hubs to provide peer to peer support and
mentoring
Digital Inclusion – Group sessions are running at the Low Hill Community
Centre “Cyber Room” to facilitate larger numbers and provide a greater service,
and additional one to one sessions are delivered at 118 Dickinson Avenue. A
series of sessions tailored to the individual needs of customers, but will cover all
the things people will need to know to help them access services confidently.
Employability Programme – the course aims to help and support people of all
abilities to find their next job, career or training opportunity.
Two jobs clubs in the area.
Financial inclusion & benefits advice - BHEMB and Big Local have invested
match funding into a European funded Black Country wide programme called
RAISE (Raising Aspirations, Inspiring social Enterprise. This match funding has
bought in 2 members of staff to work locally (supplied by Access 2 Business)
who provide support at several community bases in the area including our Info
Hub, Low Hill Community Centre and Big Venture Centre. This provides 1:1
support for advice and practical assistance with benefit advice / applications.

d) BHEMB are also working in partnership with;




Wolverhampton Credit Union to engage with the local community and publicise
Universal Credit. This partnership is particularly targeting vulnerable tenants to
try and reduce the incidence of high interest / pay day loans and door step
lenders.
Citizens Advice Bureaux to provide drop in sessions at the local community
centre, appointments at BHEMB’s info hub one day a week and further
appointment where a need is identified.

Repairs
4.9

Bushbury Hill EMB delivers its repairs service to tenants through a contract with Wrekin
Housing Trust and offers tenants a ‘same day’ repairs service. The methodology the

Page 13

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Council uses to measure repairs performance cannot measure this service. As the focus
on repairs services shifts to customer convenience rather than government timescales,
Bushbury Hill EMB has developed a suite of repairs indicators that will enable it to
measure its performance.
4.10

Performance for repairs is excellent with all indicators above target. Two of the three
measures have improved in comparison to both the previous quarter, and all three have
improved in comparison to the same period last year.

4.11

The ‘percentage of repairs attended within time’ is performing at its strongest, with
99.67% of repairs being attended to within timescales. This is an improvement of 0.15%
over the previous quarter, and 0.30% over the same period last year.

4.12

Performance for the ‘percentage of rapid response repairs attended on the same day’
has weakened slightly this quarter, to 98.76%, down by 0.54% from the previous quarter.
This remains above target.

4.13

‘Repairs completed on the same day’ is performing at its highest level in over 12 months,
at 87.79%. This is an improvement of 0.87% from the previous quarter, and 5.15% from
the same period last year.
Health and Safety

4.14

Bushbury Hill EMB have worked with the Councils Health and Safety Team to develop a
Fire Safety Policy, this includes clear lines of responsibility.

4.15

The Corporate Health and Safety Team have conducted a site visit to BHEMB to provide
a ‘critical friend’ review of policies and practices, and training has been offered to Board
Members.

4.16

BHEMB will be subject to a formal Health and Safety audit by the Corporate Health and
Safety Team in 2018-2019.
Voids and Allocations

4.17

The TMO operates a local lettings plan and its own choice-based lettings scheme Bushbury Choose Your Home. The Housing Strategy team is currently monitoring the
processes and indications suggest that it is run in accordance with the allocations policy.

4.18

Performance for voids and allocations has been excellent this quarter. The ‘average time
to re-let housing’ has dropped again from quarter one by a further 0.23 days. Quarter one
and quarter two continue to show significantly better performance than the same two
quarters in the previous year.

4.19

‘Void loss as a percentage of rent roll’ performance has improved by 0.26% in
comparison to the previous quarter and remains well within target. Please note that the
Q1 figure has been corrected in this Q2 report.

Page 14

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

4.20

During quarter two of 2017-2018 the TMO’s process for allocating properties has been
monitored using a random sample of cases. No issues were flagged and the TMO
demonstrated good practise and adherence to the Council’s allocations policy.
General Governance

4.21

General Governance of Bushbury Hill EMB is good. Officers support the board and strive
to improve and widen the services provided to tenants.

4.22

During quarter two BHEMB provided a copy of their finalised financial account for 20162017. The Councils Finance and Legal departments have reviewed these and no
concerns have been raised.

4.23

As recommended in the Governance Review, Bushbury Hill EMB has adopted a Risk
Register which will be monitored quarterly to mitigate against risks to the organisation.
During quarter two fire safety will be reviewed and added to the risk register. Bushbury
Hill EMB is working with the Council, corporate Health and Safety and Wolverhampton
Homes to review fire safety processes.

4.24

A formal review of the risk register will be reported in quarter three.

5.0

Progress for Dovecotes Tenant Management Organisation (TMO)

5.1

This section gives an outline of Dovecotes TMO’s performance for quarter two 20172018. Performance details are available in Appendix 3.

5.2

Dovecotes TMO manages 805 properties on behalf of City of Wolverhampton Council.
Performance for Q2 2017-18 is mixed. Compared to the previous quarter, performance in
relation to repairs, voids and allocations is good, with all seven related indicators within
target. However, performance in relation to rent management remains a challenge, this
quarter two of the three related indicators are outside of target.

5.3

In comparison to the same quarter in the previous year, five indicators show improving
performance, four have weakened and one has been maintained.
Rents

5.4

Performance for rents management has weakened in quarter two 2017-2018, with two
indicators outside of targets.

5.5

In relation to the ‘percentage of tenants with more than seven weeks of rent arrears’,
performance in quarter two has weakened to 5.76%, outside of the 5.0% target. Although
this is an improvement against the same quarter in 2016-2017 which was 6.29%.
This indicator was raised by Councillors following the quarter four 2016-2017 report as a
concern. Following this the Council developed an improvement plan with the TMO.
Actions were identified with the intention of improving rent collections. Following this,

Page 15

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

performance did improve in quarter one of 2017-2018 to 5.24%, although this was still
outside of target.
The Council is monitoring TMO performance and continuing to monitoring ongoing
service improvements against the improvement plan. The TMO is making efforts to
closely monitoring the numbers of tenants in rent arrears and developing a more
proactive approach to dealing with arrears and debts. New IT equipment has been
ordered for TMO staff, which will encourage more in-depth one-to-one sessions with
tenants and the TMO are looking to set up access to IT for tenants within the housing
office.
5.6

Performance for ‘arrears as a percentage of rent roll’ has weakened by 0.40% in
comparison to the previous quarter, increasing from 2.80% in quarter one to 3.20% in
quarter two. This quarter’s performance is also weaker than the same quarter in 20162017. Performance is outside of target, and as per the points raised in the previous point
remains a concern to the Council and subject to actions within the improvement plan.

5.7

No tenants were evicted due to rent arrears in the second quarter of 2017-2018. This is
an improvement on the previous quarter and the same quarter in the previous year.

5.8

The full roll out of Universal Credit in Wolverhampton takes place in December 2017.
This is likely to have an effect on income collection and rent arrears. The TMO continues
to prepare for this change to the benefits system.

5.9

In terms of Universal Credit,
a.

Staff and Board members have received extensive training.

b.

A hardship fund of £15,000 has been set for 2017-2018 for those claiming universal
credit and the TMO intend to review this level of funding as more universal credit
applicants are identified.

c.

Universal credit, fuel poverty and employment is discussed at pre-tenancy
interviews and on the tenancy commencement date and during home visits and
interviews regarding rent arrears.

d.

An additional Housing Assistant has been employed to provide assistance to
Housing Officers with their focus on income management and Universal Credit.

e.

Residents can access information online through new IT equipment during
interviews and home visits, including facilitating Universal Credit and Housing
Benefit claims and applications to Homes in the City.

f.

Information and advice on Universal Credit is communicatee to tenants in
newsletters and at the AGM.

g.

Dovecotes TMO are signposting tenants to outside agencies:

Page 16

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]






h.

5.10

All new claimants of universal credit are given a work coach with the Money
Smart Team.
Tenants are sign posted to National Debt line and CAB.
Tenants are sign posted to local job clubs which are also advertised in the
office and social media.
Referrals made to food bank and Donated animal food in connection with
Morrison’s supermarket.
Tenants are sign posted to Pendeford Library for free internet access.

Future service improvements are planned, including:

Computer/training room to be created at the Housing Office if needed.

Considering the feasibility of hosting Citizens Advice Bureau surgeries.

Working with Wolverhampton Homes to promote mutual exchanges.

In June 2017, a Risk Register was developed for Dovecotes TMO to assess the level of
risk around rent collection and how this is being mitigated. The Council has put an action
plan in place to improve performance in rent collection and this is being monitored
monthly. This continues toe a challenge for the TMO and the Council is providing
guidance on how service could be improved.
Repairs

5.11

Performance for repairs is good, with all indicators in target. Three measures have
improved since the previous quarter, and two of these have also increased when
compared to the second quarter of 2016-2017. Performance for one of the measures has
weakened slightly in comparison to the previous quarter and the second quarter of 20162017, but are still well within target.

5.12

Performance for the ‘percentage of urgent repairs completed within government time
limits’ is at 100% for the second quarter, with all urgent repairs completed on time.

5.13

The ‘average time taken to complete non-urgent repairs’ has improved by 0.77 days in
comparison to the previous quarter and remains within target.

5.14

The ‘percentage of responsive repairs for which an appointment was made and kept’ has
weakened by 1.75% in comparison to the previous quarter, however remains within
target.

5.15

Performance for the ‘percentage of emergency repairs completed on time’ has weakened
by 0.76% in comparison to the previous quarter, but remains within target.

5.16

The ‘percentage of routine repairs completed on time’ has increased by 0.50% against
the previous quarter, and by 0.81% against the same period last year.

Page 17

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Health and Safety
5.17

Dovecotes TMO have worked with the Councils Health and Safety Team to develop a
Fire Safety Policy, this includes clear lines of responsibility. The policy is currently
drafted, with a final version expected to be approved by the end of November.

5.18

The Corporate Health and Safety Team have conducted a site visit to Dovecotes to
provide a ‘critical friend’ review of policies and practices, and training has been offered to
Board Members.

5.19

Dovecotes TMO will be subject to a formal Health and Safety audit by the Corporate
Health and Safety Team in 2018-2019.
Voids and Allocations

5.20

Performance for voids and allocations is good this quarter, with both the levels of void
loss and the ‘average re-let time housing’ within target.

5.21

The performance for ‘void loss as a percentage of rent roll’ remains at 0.78% in quarter
two, the same as quarter one. This is well within target, but has weakened from 0.22% in
the same quarter in 2016-2017.

5.22

During Q1 2017-2018 the TMO’s process for allocating properties has been monitored
using a random sample of cases. No issues were flagged and the TMO demonstrated
good practise and adherence to the Councils allocations policy.

5.23

The ‘average time to re-let housing’ has increased by 0.06 days in comparison to the
previous quarter, but over ten days in comparison to the same period last year.
Governance

5.24

In July, an Organisation and Staff Review was carried out by a HR Consultant and
provided to the Board. Unfortunately, the Board was unable to accept the report or its
recommendations. Moving forward the Board have not retained the services of a
consultant and are looking to seek advice and support through the Council’s HR
department.

5.25

An Action Plan has also been developed for the TMO to monitor rent arrears
performance, as well as other issues such as Welfare Reform preparation and ASB
complaints. The Action Plan is kept updated by the Housing Strategy team, and is
monitored monthly.

5.26

The TMO was issues with an Improvement Plan in September 2017 as they failed to
conduct the Annual General Meeting in accordance with the terms of the Management
Agreement. As a result, an EGM was organised, which included a successful
continuation vote.

Page 18

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

5.27

A formal review of the risk register will be reported in quarter three.

6.0

Progress for New Park Village Tenant Management Co-operative (TMC)

6.1

This section gives an outline of New Park Village TMC’s performance for Quarter Two
2017-18. Performance details are available in Appendix 4.

6.2

New Park Village TMC manages 293 properties on behalf of City of Wolverhampton
Council. Performance is good overall this quarter with eight out of the nine indicators in
target. In comparison to the previous quarter, one indicator has improved, four have
weakened and four have been maintained. Of the four indicators, which have weakened,
three are within target. When compared to the previous year, seven have weakened and
two have been improved.
Rents

6.3

All three rent indicators for quarter two of 2017-2018 are within target.

6.4

‘Tenants with more than seven weeks (gross) rent arrears’ has weakened by 2.39% from
the previous quarter and 2.23% from the previous year. Whilst performance has
weakened, it remains within the 6% target.

6.5

‘Percentage of tenants evicted because of rent arrears’ has decreased, with no tenants
being evicted due to rent arrears in quarter two.

6.6

‘Arrears as a percentage of the rent roll’ has worsened by 0.28% when compared to the
previous quarter and weakened by 0.47% when compared to the previous year.
Performance remains within the 3% target.

6.7

The full roll out of Universal Credit in Wolverhampton takes place in December 2017.
This is likely to have an effect on income collection and rent arrear. The TMO continues
to prepare for this change to the benefits system.

6.8

In terms of preparing for the roll-out of Universal Credit:
a. NPV have a have nominated an Officer to develop expert knowledge and provide a
single point of contact to tenants.
b. Officers have received training in Universal Credit.
c. NPV is liaising with DWP on a regular basis and attending meetings with DWP and
the Council’s Benefits Team.
d. Board members have received training and are receiving monthly Board Reports to
ensure they understand the implications of the new system.
e. NPV have produced leaflets advising tenants of Universal Credit, the claim process
and how to seek further advice. Tenants are also informed about Universal Credit via
Facebook and the Website. Communication includes signposting to CAB and local
benefits advice services.
f. The Income Recovery Team is operating a proactive service; contacting tenants in
advance of Universal Credit roll-out and regularly when rent payments are due. NPV

Page 19

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

g.

h.
i.

are finding this to be a successful way to engage tenants, providing a personal
service, through phone calls and home visits. Tenants have responded well to the
opportunity to learn about Universal Credit and their responsibilities; the importance
of paying their rent promptly, reducing the likelihood of arrears forming.
NPV are planning to form a support team, one not only well versed in Universal
Credit, but also able to provide customers with comprehensive advice about
budgeting, managing debt and accessing free-banking with the use of CAB software
purchased by the TMC.
Ellerton House has its own computer suite which is available for use free of charge to
tenants and residents during office hours, along with a PC in the interview room to
ensure that everyone can access the services they require via the internet.
A weekly job club is run at Ellerton House in partnership with Job Change and Holy
Trinity Church, to assist people to find employment and offers one-to-one support.
The support can include; help with CV and cover letter creation, Universal Job Match
support, interview techniques, basic IT skills, food safety and CSCS card training and
free DBS checks to everyone with a job offer.

Repairs
6.9

Performance for quarter one is good, with all three of the four indicators on target. One of
the indicators has weakened and three have been maintained compared to the last
quarter. Three have weakened and one has improved compared to the same quarter last
year. Notably, performance for the ‘percentage of routine repairs completed on time’ has
fallen from 100% in quarter one, to 95% in quarter two, bringing performance outside of
target.

6.10

All ‘urgent repairs completed within government time limits’ were completed on time, with
performance maintained at 100% against the previous quarter and improved from 98% in
the same quarter last year. NPV continue to inspect at least 10% of all reported urgent
repairs after they have been actioned.

6.11

Performance for ‘average time taken (calendar days) to complete non-urgent repairs’ has
now been maintained for seven consecutive quarters at one day, consistently below the
target of five days.

6.12

‘Percentage of emergency repairs completed on time’ is above target, with all emergency
repairs being completed within timescales.

6.13

‘Percentage of routine repairs completed on time’ has fallen below the target of 97% to
95%.

Health and Safety
6.14

New Park Village have worked with the Councils Health and Safety Team to develop a
Fire Safety Policy, this includes clear lines of responsibility. The policy is currently
drafted, with a final version expected to be approved by the end of November.

Page 20

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

6.15

The Corporate Health and Safety Team have conducted a site visit to NPV to provide a
‘critical friend’ review of policies and practices, and training has been offered to Board
Members.

6.16

NPV will be subject to a formal Health and Safety audit by the Corporate Health and
Safety Team in 2018-2019.
Voids and Allocations

6.17

Performance for voids and allocations has been good this quarter, with both indicators
within target.

6.18

‘Average time to re-let housing’ has weakened significantly by 17.0 days to 32.0 days
since the previous quarter. This was due to an extended void period for one property
which needed to be re-classified on Northgate. Performance remains within the 35-day
target.

6.19

Performance for ‘Void loss as a percentage of rent roll’ has improved by 0.3% to 0.82%in
comparison to the last quarter. Performance remains well within the 2.50% target.
Governance

6.20

Governance at New Park Village TMC appears good, with the Board receiving monthly
updates on all areas of performance in the form of a Management Report. The board are
free to request information for inclusion with the report as they wish.

6.21

As recommended in the Governance Review, New Park Village TMC adopted a Risk
Register in May 2017 to mitigate risks to the organisation. During quarter two, fire safety
will be reviewed and added to the risk register.

6.22

A formal review of the risk register will be reported in quarter three.

7.0

Progress for Springfield Horseshoe Housing Management Co-operative (HMC)

7.1

This section gives an outline of Springfield Horseshoe HMC’s performance for Q2 of
2017-2018. Performance details are available in Appendix 5.

7.2

Springfield Horseshoe HMC manages 261 properties on behalf of City of Wolverhampton
Council. Performance has been very good this quarter, with all nine indicators in target.
Four have weakened and five have been maintained when compared to the previous
quarter.

Page 21

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Rents Management
7.3

Performance for rents management was good in the second quarter of 2017-2018, with
all indicators well within target; two have weakened and all one has been maintained
compared to the previous quarter. Compared to the same quarter last year, two
indicators have improved and one has been maintained.

7.4

Performance for ‘tenants with more than seven weeks (gross) rent arrears has weakened
from quarter one to 3.07%. the performance in quarter one, at 2.74%, was the strongest
in over a year. The quarter two performance (3.07%) is much improved from the same
quarter in the previous year (5.20%) and comfortably below the 5.0% target.

7.5

There were no evictions due to rent arrears in the second quarter of 2017-2018.

7.6

Performance for ‘arrears as a percentage of rent roll’ has weakened by 0.20% when
compared to the previous quarter, but shows an improvement of 0.10% when compared
to the same quarter last year.

7.7

The full roll out of Universal Credit in Wolverhampton takes place in December 2017.
This is likely to have an effect on income collection and rent arrear. The TMO continues
to prepare for this change to the benefits system.

7.8

In terms of preparing for the roll-out of Universal Credit:
a. Springfield Horseshoe have employed a dedicated officer to support tenants
transitioning to and applying for Universal Credit.
b. Staff attend relevant training to ensure their knowledge is up to date and they are
able to support tenants effectively.
c. The TMO are in the process of purchasing IT equipment to set up an IT area for
tenants to use in the TMO office. This will provide IT and internet access for tenants
where they can sit privately to apply for Universal Credit and seek the support of staff
if needed.
Repairs

7.9

Performance for repairs remains excellent with all indicators in target and all performance
maintained at very high levels throughout 2016-17, and in both the first and second
quarters of 2017-2018. All repairs are being completed within timescales, with non-urgent
repairs being completed within one day on average.
Health and Safety

7.10

Springfield Horseshoe have worked with the Councils Health and Safety Team to
develop a Fire Safety Policy, this includes clear lines of responsibility. The policy is
currently drafted, with a final version expected to be approved by the end of November.

Page 22

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

7.11

The Corporate Health and Safety Team have conducted a site visit to Springfield
Horseshoe to provide a ‘critical friend’ review of policies and practices, and training has
been offered to Board Members.

7.12

Springfield Horseshoe will be subject to a formal Health and Safety audit by the
Corporate Health and Safety Team in 2018-2019.
Voids and Allocations

7.13

Performance for voids and allocations has been good this quarter, with both indicators
well within target.

7.14

Performance for ‘void loss as a percentage of rent roll’ has weakened by 0.18% when
compared to the previous quarter and by 0.54% when compared to the same quarter last
year. However, the indicator remains firmly within target.

7.15

The ‘average time to re-let housing’ has weakened by 9.33 days in comparison to the
previous quarter, but has improved by 2.33 days in comparison to the same quarter last
year.

7.16

During the second quarter of 2017-2018 the process for allocating properties within
Springfield Horseshoe has been monitored using a random sample of cases. No issues
were flagged and the TMO demonstrated good practise and adherence to the Councils
allocations policy.
Governance

7.17

As recommended in the Governance Review, Springfield Horseshoe HMC adopted a
Risk Register in May 2017 to mitigate risks to the organisation.

7.18

During quarter two fire safety has been reviewed and added to the risk register.

7.19

A formal review of the risk register will be reported in quarter three.

8.0

Re-negotiation of Tenant Management Organisation Management Agreements

8.1

Each of the TMOs has now completed their internal approval process for adoption of the
new Management Agreement.

8.2

Each of the TMOs has completed a Governance Review.

8.3

The Council has worked with each of the TMOs to develop a Risk Register, as
recommended by the Governance Reviews. All TMO’s have now formally adopted their
Risk Registers which are monitored quarterly.

Page 23

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

8.4

The performance monitoring framework has been reviewed and updated as part of the
new Management Agreement, at which stage the Council and TMOs will sign the
agreement.

8.5

The Councils corporate insurance section has provided updated clauses in relation t6o
insurance and compensation procedures.

8.6

The Council and Wolverhampton Homes have worked with the TMOs to update the
repairs schedules which set out retained and delegated repair responsibilities.

8.7

It is anticipated that the new Management Agreements will be adopted by January 2017.

9.0

Financial implications

9.1

The performance of the managing agent, and in particular Wolverhampton Homes,
impacts on the Council’s Housing Revenue Account Business Plan. The financial impact
is reflected in the quarterly financial monitoring of the HRA which is included as part of
the quarterly corporate budget monitoring reports to Cabinet (Resources) Panel.
[JM/21112017/D]

10.0

Legal implications

10.1

The services provided by the managing agents relates to the discharge of the Council’s
duties to its tenants. Failure to undertake relevant repairs to housing stock within a
reasonable time following notice to the Council of disrepair can result in a tenant
commencing proceedings in the civil courts against the Council for breach of repairing
obligations under S11 of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985.
[RB/22112017P]

11.0

Equalities implications

11.1

There are no direct equality implications arising from this report, however the delivery of
housing management services has an impact on the accessibility of housing for residents
in the city.

12.0

Environmental implications

12.1

There are no direct environmental implications arising from this report, however the
proper management of the Council’s housing stock including investment to repair and
improve properties considerably enhances the built environment.

13.0

Human resources implications

13.1

This report has no human resources implications.

Page 24

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

14.0

Corporate landlord implications

14.1

This report relates to the performance of the housing management agents and council
housing stock and therefore has no corporate landlord implications.

15.0

Schedule of background papers
Appendix 1a:
Wolverhampton Homes – 2017-2018 Quarter Two Performance (by category)
Appendix 1b:
Wolverhampton Homes – 2017-2018 Quarter Two Performance (by Rag Rating)
Appendix 2:
Bushbury Hill EMB – 2017-2018 Quarter Two Performance (by category)
Appendix 3:
Dovecotes TMO – 2017-2018 Quarter Two Performance (by category)
Appendix 4:
New Park Village TMC – 2017-2018 Quarter Two Performance (by category)
Appendix 5:
Springfield Horseshoe HMC – 2017-2018 Quarter Two Performance (by category)

Page 25

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED/]

Appendix 1a
Wolverhampton Homes
category

by

Good
is

Q2
16/17

Q3
16/17

Q4
16/17

EOY
16/17

Q1
17/18

Q2
17/18

Target
Profile
Or
Annual

Comment

Trend
Q-OQ

Anti-social behaviour

Page 26

A

% satisfied with the way their ASB
complaint was dealt with

H

98.55

98.65

100.00

98.73

98.90

96.95

97.00

G

% satisfied with the outcome of their
ASB complaint

H

97.10

98.65

99.39

98.00

98.34

96.95

96.00

L

7.10

6.42

6.50

6.50

5.72

6.40

6.50

Performance has
dropped very slightly
below target. 3
people stated
dissatisfaction as WH
were unable to meet
the customers’
expectations.
Performance is on
target.

-

-

Business planning
G

Average days lost through illness

Performance is on
target

-

Customer care

G

Homes Direct - % of customers
answered within 80 seconds
(New for 2017 / 2018)

H

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

83.40

82.50

55.00

G

Homes Direct - % of calls abandoned

L

19.30

19.40

12.70

17.20

4.20

3.50

20.00

G

Councillor enquiries responded to in 14
days

H

91.76

93.75

97.55

94.31

98.64

96.98

95.00

G

Complaints responded to in target
timescales - %

H

86.21

94.67

93.02

90.48

94.65

92.63

92.00

Performance is on
target. A significant
improvement has
been made since
changes were made
to call waiting in
October last year.
Performance is on
target. A significant
reduction of
abandoned calls has
been made since
changes were made
to call waiting in
October last year.
Performance is on
target
Performance is on
target

-

+

+
-

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED/]
Estate services
G

% of fire safety inspections completed on
low rise & medium rise blocks
(concierge)

H

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

99.00

Performance is on
target.

=

G

% of fire safety inspections completed on
high rise blocks (concierge)

H

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

99.00

Performance is on
target.

=

Rent management

Page 27

G

Rent collected as a percentage of rent
owed

H

97.08

97.67

98.17

98.17

96.48

96.88

96.75

Performance is on
target
Performance is off
target. Issues include
welfare reform, court
entry limits, levels of
unemployment, pay
and benefit
constraints.
Performance is on
target

R

Tenants with more than 7 weeks arrears
as a percentage of all tenants

L

2.20

2.40

2.49

2.49

2.59

2.85

2.50

G

% of Tenants evicted for rent arrears as
a percentage of all tenants

L

0.23

0.36

0.51

0.51

0.07

0.20

0.25

G

Rent arrears of current tenants as a % of
the rent roll (WH only)

L

1.75

1.57

1.18

1.18

1.67

1.90

1.90

Performance is on
target

+

+

-

=

Repairs
G

% of responsive repairs for which an
appointment was made & kept

H

96.13

95.47

96.35

95.99

96.10

95.90

95.00

Performance is on
target

-

G

% of valid gas certificates for tenanted
properties

H

99.98

99.98

100.00

100.00

99.99

99.99

99.60

Performance is on
target

=

G

% total response repairs completed
within target

H

97.35

96.98

97.09

97.28

98.06

98.61

98.00

Performance is on
target

+

+/5%

24.26

23.47

22.25

93.89
(Target
95%)

20.92

22.57

23.75

Performance is on
target

+

Stock investment
G

% progress (by Value) with the delivery
of capital projects

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED/]
Voids and allocations

Page 28

A

Average time taken to re-let standard
voids

L

19

17

18

19

21

21

20.00

A

Average time taken to re-let major works
voids

L

8

8

7

8

9

11

10.00

G

% of tenancy offers accepted first time

H

84.69

85.13

85.25

84.74

81.54

83.33

80.00

G

% Rent lost through properties being
vacant

L

0.88

0.81

0.79

0.79

0.78

0.84

0.94

R

Council Tax Liability - Average number
of management voids

L

109.92

81.00

106.69

101.88

117.31

137.04

120.00

Performance is slightly
below target. New
online pre-tenancy,
and revised asbestos
removal processes
are hoped to have a
positive effect in
Quarter 3.
Performance is slightly
below target. New
online pre-tenancy,
and revised asbestos
removal processes
are hoped to have a
positive effect in
Quarter 3.
Performance is on
target
Performance is on
target
Performance is off
target. A revised
asbestos removal
process is hoped to
have a positive impact
in quarter 3.

-

-

+
-

-

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED/]

Appendix 1a
Wolverhampton Homes by
category

Good
is

Q2
16/17

Q3
16/17

Q4
16/17

EOY
16/17

Q1
17/18

Q2
17/18

Target
Profile
Or
Annual

H

97.10

98.65

99.39

98.00

98.34

96.95

96.00

Performance is on
target.

-

L

7.10

6.42

6.50

6.50

5.72

6.40

6.50

Performance is on
target

-

Comment

Trend
Q-OQ

Anti-social behaviour
G

% satisfied with the outcome of their
ASB complaint

Business planning
G

Average days lost through illness

Customer care
Performance is on
target. A significant
improvement has
been made since
changes were made
to call waiting in
October last year.
Performance is on
target. A significant
reduction of
abandoned calls has
been made since
changes were made
to call waiting in
October last year.
Performance is on
target

Homes Direct - % of customers
answered within 80 seconds
(New for 2017 / 2018)

H

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

83.40

82.50

55.00

G

Homes Direct - % of calls abandoned

L

19.30

19.40

12.70

17.20

4.20

3.50

20.00

G

Councillor enquiries responded to in 14
days

H

91.76

93.75

97.55

94.31

98.64

96.98

95.00

G

Complaints responded to in target
timescales - %

H

86.21

94.67

93.02

90.48

94.65

92.63

92.00

Performance is on
target

-

Page 29

G

-

+

+

Estate services
G

% of fire safety inspections completed on
low rise & medium rise blocks
(concierge)

H

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

99.00

Performance is on
target.

=

G

% of fire safety inspections completed on
high rise blocks (concierge)

H

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

99.00

Performance is on
target.

=

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED/]
Rent management
G

Rent collected as a percentage of rent
owed

H

97.08

97.67

98.17

98.17

96.48

96.88

96.75

Performance is on
target

+

G

% of Tenants evicted for rent arrears as
a percentage of all tenants

L

0.23

0.36

0.51

0.51

0.07

0.20

0.25

Performance is on
target

=

G

Rent arrears of current tenants as a % of
the rent roll (WH only)

L

1.75

1.57

1.18

1.18

1.67

1.90

1.90

Performance is on
target

+

Repairs

Page 30

G

% of responsive repairs for which an
appointment was made & kept

H

96.13

95.47

96.35

95.99

96.10

95.90

95.00

Performance is on
target

-

G

% of valid gas certificates for tenanted
properties

H

99.98

99.98

100.00

100.00

99.99

99.99

99.60

Performance is on
target

=

G

% total response repairs completed
within target

H

97.35

96.98

97.09

97.28

98.06

98.61

98.00

Performance is on
target

+

+/5%

24.26

23.47

22.25

93.89
(Target
95%)

20.92

22.57

23.75

Performance is on
target

+

Stock investment
G

% progress (by Value) with the delivery
of capital projects

Voids and allocations
G

% of tenancy offers accepted first time

H

84.69

85.13

85.25

84.74

81.54

83.33

80.00

G

% Rent lost through properties being
vacant

L

0.88

0.81

0.79

0.79

0.78

0.84

0.94

Performance is on
target
Performance is on
target

+
-

Anti-social behaviour

A

% satisfied with the way their ASB
complaint was dealt with

H

98.55

98.65

100.00

98.73

98.90

96.95

97.00

Performance has
dropped very slightly
below target. 3
people stated
dissatisfaction as
WH were unable to
meet the customers’
expectations.

-

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED/]

A

Average time taken to re-let standard
voids

L

19

17

18

19

21

21

20.00

A

Average time taken to re-let major works
voids

L

8

8

7

8

9

11

10.00

Page 31

Performance is
slightly below target.
New online pretenancy, and revised
asbestos removal
processes are
hoped to have a
positive effect in
Quarter 3.
Performance is
slightly below target.
New online pretenancy, and revised
asbestos removal
processes are
hoped to have a
positive effect in
Quarter 3.

-

-

Rent management

R

Tenants with more than 7 weeks’ arrears
as a percentage of all tenants

L

2.20

2.40

2.49

2.49

2.59

2.85

2.50

Performance is off
target. Issues
include welfare
reform, court entry
limits, levels of
unemployment, pay
and benefit
constraints.

-

120.00

Performance is off
target. A revised
asbestos removal
process is hoped to
have a positive
impact in quarter 3.

-

Voids and allocations

R

Council Tax Liability - Average number
of management voids

L

109.92

81.00

106.69

101.88

117.31

137.04

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED/]

Appendix 2 - Bushbury Hill Estate Management Board

Aim

Annual
Target

Q2
16/17

Q3
16/17

Q4
16/17

Q4
16/17
YTD

Q1
17/18

Q2
17/18

% tenants with more than seven
weeks (gross) rent arrears
(quarter figure)

L

2.50%

2.14%

2.16%

1.70%

2.02%

1.64%

1.94%

Performance has
weakened from Q1 to Q2,
but is in target.

+

% of tenants evicted as a result
of rent arrears

L

1.00%

0.24%

0.12%

0.24%

0.74%

0.24%

0.00%

No evictions this quarter,
cumulative performance todate is within target.

-

Arrears as % of rent roll
(cumulative)

L

1.75%

1.67%

1.55%

0.98%

0.98%

1.52%

1.68%

Performance has
weakened from Q1 to Q2,
but remains in target.

+

% Repairs attended within time
(WHT & WH)

H

95.00%

96.37%

98.39%

97.20%

97.13%

99.52%

99.67%

Performance from Q1 to Q2
has improved and is above
target.

+

% Rapid Response Repairs
attended same day (WHT only)

H

97.00%

97.96%

97.88%

97.93%

98.10%

99.30%

98.76%

Performance has
weakened from Q1 to Q2,
but remains in target.

-

RAG

Measure

Comment

Trend
Q-O-Q

Rent Management

Page 32

Repairs

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED/]

H

80.00%

82.64%

87.03%

83.93%

84.23%

86.92%

87.79%

Performance from Q1 to Q2
has improved and is above
target.

+

Void Loss as a % of rent roll
(quarter figure)

L

1.00%

0.18%

0.11%

0.14%

0.57%

0.60%

0.34%

Performance from Q1 to Q2
has improved and is within
target.

+

Average time to re-let housing

L

35
days

29.00

20.78

28.71

25.42

14.13

13.90

Performance from Q1 to Q2
has improved and is within
target.

+

% Rapid Response completed
same day (WHT only)
Voids and Allocations

Page 33

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED/]

RAG

Measure

Appendix 3 - Dovecotes Tenant Management Organisation
Q4
Annual
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Aim
16/17
Target
16/17
16/17
16/17
17/18
YTD

Q2
17/18

Comment

Trend
Q-OQ

Rent management

Page 34

Performance from Q1
to Q2 has weakened
and is outside of the
target figure.
No evictions this
quarter, cumulative
performance to-date is
within target.
Performance from Q1
to Q2 has weakened
and is outside of the
target figure.

+

Q1 and Q2 both show
performance at 100%;
above the target.

=

Performance from Q1
to Q2 has improved and
is within target.

+

95.59%

Performance from Q1
to Q2 has weakened ,
but is within target.

-

96.61%

97.37%

Performance from Q1
to Q2 has improved and
is within target.

+

98.56%

99.06%

Performance from Q1
to Q2 has improved and
is within target.

+

% tenants with more than seven
weeks (gross) rent arrears
(quarter figure)

L

5.25%

6.29%

6.63%

4.98%

6.15%

5.24%

5.76%

% of tenants evicted as a result
of rent arrears

L

1.50%

0.37%

0.00%

0.12%

0.62%

0.25%

0.00%

Arrears as % of rent roll
(cumulative)

L

3.00%

3.13%

3.12%

2.47%

2.47%

2.80%

3.20%

% of urgent repairs completed
within government time limits
(Right to Repair)

H

96.00%

100.00%

98.95%

99.18%

98.97%

100.00%

100.00%

Average time taken (calendar
days) to complete non-urgent
repairs

L

9 days

6.16

6.45

6.36

6.25

6.58

5.81

% of responsive repairs for
which an appointment was
made and kept

H

90.00%

97.71%

97.46%

96.88%

97.30%

97.34%

% of emergency repairs
completed on time

H

96.00%

98.00%

96.88%

97.30%

96.54%

% of routine repairs completed
on time

H

96.00%

98.25%

99.32%

98.82%

98.98%

-

-

Repairs

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED/]
Voids and Allocations
Void Loss as a % of rent roll
(quarter figure)

L

2.00%

0.22%

0.17%

0.08%

0.88%

0.78%

0.78%

Average time to re-let housing

L

30
days

29.31

27.85

16.20

28.43

18.57

18.63

Performance from Q1
to Q2 has been
maintained and is within
target.
Performance from Q1
to Q2 has improved and
is within target.

=

+

Page 35

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED/]
Appendix 4 - New Park Village Tenant Management Co-operative
RAG

Measure

Aim

17/18
Target

Q2
16/17

Q3
16/17

Q4
16/17

Q4
16/17
YTD

Q1
17/18

Q2
17/18

Comment

Trend
Q-OQ

-

Rent Management

Page 36

% tenants with more than
seven weeks (gross) rent
arrears (quarter figure)

L

6.00%

2.55%

3.20%

1.69%

3.16%

2.39%

4.78%

Performance from Q1
to Q2 has weakened,
but remains within
target.

% of tenants evicted as a
result of rent arrears

L

3.00%

0.34%

0.00%

0.00%

0.34%

0.00%

0.00%

No tenants evicted in
Q1 or Q2; remaining
within target.

=

2.58%

Performance from Q1
to Q2 has weakened
but remains within
target.

-

Arrears as % of rent roll

L

3.00%

2.11%

2.18%

1.69%

1.69%

2.30%

Repairs
% of urgent repairs
completed within
government time limits
(Right to Repair)

H

97.00%

100.00%

96.00%

100.00%

99.11%

100.00%

100.00%

Average time taken
(calendar days) to complete
non-urgent repairs

L

5 days

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

% of emergency repairs
completed on time

H

97.00%

98.00%

95.00%

95.00%

96.87%

100.00%

100.00%

% of routine repairs
completed on time

H

97.00%

97.00%

100.00%

95.00%

97.05%

100.00%

95.00%

Performance has
been maintained at
100% for Q1 and Q2,
within target.
Performance has
been maintained at 1
day for Q1 and Q2,
within target
Performance has
been maintained at
100% for Q1 and Q2,
within target.
Performance from Q1
to Q2 has weakened
and has fallen outside
of target.

=

=

=

-

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED/]
Voids and Allocations
Void Loss as a % of rent roll
(quarter figure)

L

2.50%

0.23%

0.17%

0.03%

0.61%

1.12%

0.82%

Average time to re-let
housing

L

35
days

19.83

19.40

10.05

19.67

15.00

32.00

Performance from Q1
to Q2 has improved
and remains within
target.
Performance from Q1
to Q2 has weakened,
due to one property
re-let. Performance
remains within target.

+

-

Page 37

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED/]

Appendix 5 - Springfield Horseshoe Housing Management Co-operative
RAG

Measure

Aim

Annual
Target

Q2
16/17

Q3
16/17

Q4
16/17

Q4
16/17
YTD

Q1
17/18

Q2
17/18

Comment

Trend
Q-OQ

Rents management

Page 38

Performance from
Q1 to Q2 has
weakened, but
remains within
target.
No evictions this
quarter, performance
maintained well
within target.
Performance from
Q1 to Q2 has
weakened, but
remains within
target.

=

100.00%

Performance from
Q1 to Q2 has been
maintained and is
within target.

=

1.00

Performance from
Q1 to Q2 has been
maintained and is
within target.

=

% tenants with more than
seven weeks (gross) rent
arrears (quarter figure)

L

5.00%

5.20%

4.45%

3.01%

4.90%

2.74%

3.07%

% of tenants evicted as a
result of rent arrears

L

2.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

Arrears as % of rent roll

L

3.00%

2.18%

1.94%

1.63%

1.63%

1.88%

2.08%

-

-

Repairs
% of urgent repairs
completed within
government time limits
(Right to Repair)
Average time taken
(calendar days) to
complete non-urgent
repairs

H

L

98.00%

2 days

100.00%

1.00

100.00%

1.00

100.00%

1.00

100.00%

1.00

100.00%

1.00

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED/]

% of emergency repairs
completed on time

% of routine repairs
completed on time

H

H

98.00%

98.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Performance from
Q1 to Q2 has been
maintained and is
within target.

=

100.00%

Performance from
Q1 to Q2 has been
maintained and is
within target.

=

Voids and Allocations

Page 39

Void Loss as a % of rent
roll
(quarter figure)

L

2.00%

0.04%

0.07%

0.09%

0.33%

0.42%

0.60%

Average time to re-let
housing

L

32
days

16.33

7.33

14.00

15.00

4.67

14.00

Performance from
Q1 to Q2 has
weakened, but
remains within
target.
Performance from
Q1 to Q2 has
weakened, but
remains within
target.

-

-

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 6

Cabinet (Performance
Management) Panel
4 December 2017
Report title

Information Governance Quarter Two
Performance and General Data Protection
Regulations Update Report

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Milkinderpal Jaspal
Governance

Corporate Plan outcome

Future Performance

Wards affected

(All Wards);

Accountable Director

Kevin O'Keefe, Director of Governance

Originating service

Democratic Services

Accountable employee

Anna ZollinoBiscotti
Tel
Email

Report to be/has been
considered by

Information Governance Manager
01902 555166
Anna.Zollino-Biscotti@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Strategic Executive Board
Scrutiny Board
Information Governance Board

21 November 2017
5 December 2017
14 December 2017

Recommendation(s) for action or decision:
The Cabinet (Performance Management) Panel is recommended to:
1. Review and comment on the quarter two performance for Information Governance
2. Review and comment on the quarterly progress update on the General Data Protection
Regulation (GDPR).

Page 41

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

1.0

Purpose

1.1

To provide an update on the Information Governance performance figures for quarter
two.

1.2

To provide a quarterly update on the work currently being undertaken by the Information
Governance (IG) team and directorates in preparation for the General Data Protection
Regulations (GDPR).

2.0

General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
Background and context

2.1

On 14 April 2016, the EU Parliament approved the General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR). The regulation is due to come into effect on 25 May 2018 to provide an
accountability based framework for data protection in Europe.

2.2

In October 2016, the Government confirmed that it will implement the GDPR in the UK
and that the UK’s decision to leave the EU will not affect the commencement of the
GDPR. The new regulations will replace the current Data Protection Act 1998 and the
Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) will continue to be the supervisory authority.

2.3

In April 2017, the Government issued a consultation document to consider the
derogations (exemptions) within the GDPR where the UK can exercise discretion over
how certain provisions are applied.

2.4

In September 2017, the Data Protection Bill was published and sets out the new
standards for protecting general data in accordance with GDPR and preserving certain
other exemptions of the current Data Protection Act 1998. The Bill will result in a new
Data Protection Act replacing the current Data Protection Act (1998) and will add clarity
on how the UK will apply statutory controls to areas of the GDPR where Member States
have been given some flexibility i.e. the derogations. As and when the UK leaves the EU
the new Data Protection Act would replace the GDPR.

2.5

In preparation for the new regulation, a GDPR work programme has been developed,
drawing on regional collaborative work completed with other local authorities. This was
approved in July 2017 and this report provides the first quarterly update to the Board on
progress to date, since approval.

Programme of work overview
2.6

A training Needs Analysis (TNA) and communication plan was completed at the start of
the project to identify the level of engagement required by each service area. This
ranges from those who only need to be aware of the changes, as little or no personal
data is processed by the service, to those who need to be actively engaged in the
programme.

Page 42

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

2.7

Using the information identified from the TNA, a matrix has been produced to identify
those departments who are key stakeholders in GDPR work. A training priority has been
assigned to each department. Appendix A shows the list of departments and the priority
status given – 1 being high priority.

2.8

To ensure maximum engagement with minimum disruption, training and awareness
briefings are taking place at regular team or departmental meetings. Where workshops
are required, these are also being led by the IG team and comprise of a pre-booked twohour session to review areas of impact and devise service specific action plans. Progress
against the plan is then monitored throughout the duration of the project, and revisited
where required.
Progress to date and next steps

2.9

A Project Manager from the Council’s Programme Office was assigned to the project in
August 2017 and is currently working with the IG team to support the project and to
monitor ongoing progress against milestones.

2.10

In line with the communication plan, a City People article headlining the new regulation
was published in July 2017, along with a GDPR briefing document that staff could
download for further information about the impending changes. Further communications
have been scheduled before the year end and at key points in quarter four 2018. These
include City People articles and updates in Core Brief, in addition to IG surgeries.
Webinars are also being considered whereby staff can log into a presentation or Q & A
session with the IG team on GDPR.

2.11

The IG team have presented an overview of the GDPR at all Senior Leadership
meetings. This has enabled the IG team to plan future team specific, face to face,
briefing sessions and matrix workshops. Progress to date on the latter is on track,
despite resource issues experienced with the team during quarter two.

2.12

Appendix One shows the service areas across the Council who have received GDPR
training and awareness to date, either through briefings or workshops. The majority of
service areas who are key stakeholders and who have a high training priority have either
received training and are progressing individual action plans or are scheduled to do so by
the end of quarter three. Those service areas where the IG team have yet to engage
with at operational level, are in the most part, teams who have a low training priority and
who therefore can be trained at a later point in the year.

2.13

The IG team are currently reviewing a GDPR e-learning module provided by the Learning
Hub. This can be configured to meet the Council’s needs. Once available, this will
provide a blended training delivery solution and will further support and enhance the
current learning methods. Publication of the module is planned for quarter four.

Page 43

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

2.14

Separate to the GDPR work programme, discussions are currently being held with DTP
and VisionWare (external suppliers of the Master Data Management solution) to take
advantage of development they are embarking on regarding Consent Management under
GDPR. This is in its early stages and the Board will be updated on the viability of the
development once more is known.

3.0

Quarter two Information Governance performance reporting
Background and context

3.1

The ICO has been interacting with the Council on Information Governance matters for
several years. Considerable improvements have been made since their consensual
audits in 2011 and 2012, which focused on requests for personal data (Subject Access
requests - SAR) and Freedom of Information (FOI).

3.2

Work has continued since the conclusion of the audit and a strategic approach to
Information Governance has been adopted to ensure that the Council appropriately
manages its information assets. Considerable improvements have been made in terms of
processing information requests and the Council’s overall statutory response rates have
improved dramatically over the last five years.

3.3

In order to ensure ongoing improvements with information governance this report
outlines current performance.
Progress for quarter two

3.4

The IG performance figures for quarter two are contained in appendix two.

3.5

FOI – 251 requests were received for Freedom of Information which is slightly less than
last quarter. All but two valid requests were responded to within the statutory 20-day
timeframe, which equates to a 99% response rate. This was the result of one late
submission of information and one request where there was a query at authorisation,
resulting in a delay in issuing the final response to the requester.

3.6

EIR- 26 requests were received for environmental information this quarter. 24 of these
requests were valid requests and all (100%) were responded to within the statutory 20day timeframe. Further clarification was requested for two of these requests, both of
which have received a nil response and therefore will be closed after 90 days if no further
information is received. 23 of the total 26 requests received were single directorate
requests, whereby information was held by one directorate.

3.7

DP- 83 requests were received for Data Protection this quarter which is a slight decrease
compared to those requests received last quarter, however volumes remain consistent to
those received in previous quarters of the last reporting year. The response rate for this
quarter is 99%, as one request was responded to outside of the statutory 40-day
timeframe. This was due to information being received late by the business area.

Page 44

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.8

The number of information incidents reported for the quarter has doubled as 18 incidents
have been reported. This is also slightly higher than number of incidents reported for
quarter 2 in the previous two years (13 in 15/16 and 13 in 16/17). The trend in incident
type remains the same however, as 16 out of the 18 incidents reported (89%) were of the
incident type “Disclosed in error”. All of the incidents reported were in the low risk
category.

4.0

Financial implications

4.1

There are no financial implications associated with this report as the Board are requested
to review the progress made on information governance and review progress on the
GDPR programme of work.

4.2

It is worth noting, however, that a failure to effectively manage information governance
carries a financial risk. Inaccurate and out of date information can lead to poor decision
making and a potential waste of financial resources. In addition to this, poor information
governance can currently result in a fine of up to £500,000 from the ICO.

4.3

In addition, the GDPR brings with it higher financial penalties and a two-tiered sanction
regime will be adopted – where the lesser information incidents are subject to a
maximum fine of either €10 million (£7.9 million) or 2 percent of an organisation's global
turnover (whichever is greater). The most serious violations could result in fines of up to
€20 million or 4 percent of turnover (whichever is greater).
[SR/20112017/D]

5.0

Legal implications

5.1

The Council has a legal duty under the current Data Protection Act 1998, Freedom of
Information Act 2000 and Environmental Information Regulations 2004 to appropriately
manage and protect information assets.

5.2

The integration of Public Health into the Council in April 2012 required the Council to
provide assurance to the NHS that it had in place suitable Information Governance
policies, procedures and processes.

5.3

Failure to effectively manage information governance could increase risk of exposure to
fraud and malicious acts, reputational damage, an inability to recover from major
incidents and potential harm to individuals or groups due to inappropriate disclosure of
information.

5.4

The Information Commissioner has the legal authority to:
• Fine organisations up to £500,000 per breach of the Data Protection Act or Privacy &
Electronic Communication Regulations.
• Conduct assessments to check organisations are complying with the Act.

Page 45

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

•

•
•
•

Serve Enforcement Notices and 'stop now' orders where there has been a breach of
the Act, requiring organisations to take (or refrain from taking) specified steps in
order to ensure they comply with the law.
Prosecute those who commit criminal offences under section 55 of the Act.
Conduct audits to assess whether organisations processing of personal data follows
good practice.
Report issues of concern to Parliament.

5.5

Demonstration of the Council’s compliance with the current Data Protection Act 1998 and
with GDPR going forward protects it from legal challenges for alleged breaches of
individuals’ rights.
[ TS/20112017/W]

6.0

Equalities implications

6.1

Having considered the equalities issues presented under the current Data Protection Act
1998, we believe that no new implications have been identified from associated actions
or recommendations of this report.

6.2

Any new equalities issues that become apparent as the programme of work progresses
will undergo an initial screening and if appropriate will be followed by a full equalities
analysis.

7.0

Environmental implications

7.1

There are no environmental implications identified.

8.0

Human resources implications

8.1

Working practices to support the adoption of GDPR controls and measures will be
incorporated into existing Information Governance and HR policies.

9.0

Risk implications

9.1

Risks identified from the GDPR project will be managed at project level, and will be
reported through to the Information Governance Board.

10.0

Corporate landlord implications

10.1

There no direct corporate landlord implications identified.

11.0

Schedule of background papers
Strategic Executive Board – Briefing note on GDPR – July 2017
Strategic Executive Board Report – Approach to GDPR – January 2017.

Page 46

Key
K= Key Stakeholder
H= High Priority
L= Low Priority
X= Yes
- = No or N/A
Directorate
Governance
Corporate Services
Corporate Services
Corporate Services
People
People
People
People
People
People
People
People
Education
Education
Education
People
People
People
People
People
People
People
People
Corporate Services
Corporate Services
Corporate Services
Corporate Services
Governance
People
People
People
People
People
People
Corporate Services
Governance
Governance
Governance
Governance
Governance
Governance
Corporate Services
Corporate Services
Corporate Services
Place
Place
Place
Place
Place
Place
Place
Place
Place
Place
Place
Place
Place
Place
Place
Place
Corporate Services
Place
West Midlands Pension Fund
West Midlands Pension Fund
West Midlands Pension Fund
West Midlands Pension Fund
West Midlands Pension Fund
Wholly Owned Companies
Wholly Owned Companies
Wholly Owned Companies
Wholly Owned Companies

Department
Information Governance
ICT
DTP
Procurement
Children and Young People - Child Protection
Children and Young People - LAC
Children and Young People - Early Intervention
Children and Young People - Specialist Support
Children and Young People - Youth Offending
Children and Young People - Educational Psychology
Children and Young People - Head Start Programme
Commissioning
School Planning and Resources
Headteachers
School Standards
Adult social Care - West
Adult social Care - East
Adult social Care - North
Adult social Care - Principle Social worker
Adult social Care - Adult Provision
Adult social Care - Community Financial Support
Adult social Care - Mental Health
Safeguarding

Management
Briefing Session
Date
08/05/2017
31/08/2017
31/08/2017
11/09/2017
14/07/2017
14/07/2017
14/07/2017
14/07/2017
14/07/2017
14/07/2017
14/07/2017
18/09/2017
09/10/2017
19/10/2017
09/10/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
14/07/2017

Team
Workshop
Date
08/06/2017
^Dec 2017
25/09/2017
09/11/2017
20/10/2017
21/10/2017
22/10/2017
23/10/2017
24/10/2017
25/10/2017
26/10/2017
^Dec 2017
19/10/2017
^Dec 2017
01/12/2017
01/12/2017
01/12/2017
01/12/2017
01/12/2017
01/12/2017
01/12/2017

04/08/2017
04/08/2017
21/08/2017
21/08/2017
27/09/2017
24/10/2017
11/09/2017
28/09/2017
NR
11/09/2017
10/11/2017
Schedule after NOV 17
Schedule after NOV 17
Schedule after NOV 17
Schedule after NOV 17
Schedule after NOV 17
Schedule after NOV 17
11/09/2017
11/09/2017
11/09/2017
11/09/2017

Revenues and Benefits
Customer Services
Communications
The Hub
Human Resources
Public Health - Evidence
Public Health - Protection
Public Health - Commissioning
Public Health - Healthier Place
Public Health - Programmes
Public Health - Community Safety
Organisational Development
Legal Services
Democratic Services
Licencing Services
Equalities
Scrutiny
Members (Councillors)
Audit
Insight & Performance
Finance/Accountant
Housing
Economy - Enterprise
Economy - Skills
Economy - Visitor Economy
Environment - Highways Network
Environment - Public Protection
Environment - Environmental Services
Landlord - Facilities
Economy - Strategic Programmes
Economy - City Development
Economy - Major Projects
Economy - City Planning
Economy - Black County Hub Growth
Environment - Strategic Transport
Landlord - Assets
Landlord - Projects and Works
PMO Office
Future Space
Pensions and Investments
Pensions Governance
Pensions Finance
Pensions Programme
Pensions Administration
YOO Recruit
WV Active
Building Houses
Wolverhampton Homes

24/01/2018
11/09/2017
11/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
11/09/2017
18/09/2017
05/05/2017
05/05/2017
05/05/2017
05/05/2017
05/05/2017
10/10/2017
01/07/2017

Page 47

Training Priority
1
2
3
3
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
5
6
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
6

7
7
7
7
7
8
8
8
8
8
8
9
9
10
10
10
10
24/01/2018
10
^Dec 2017
10
11
11
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
28/11/2017
12
12
Separate training Plan
Separate training Plan
Separate training Plan
Separate training Plan
Separate training Plan
Separate Data Controller
21/11/2017
Separate Data Controller
Separate Data Controller
^Dec 2017
Separate Data Controller

This page is intentionally left blank

Information Governance Summary

Completed within
Statutory
Timeframe

251

99.2%

Corporate
107

Completed
within Statutory
Timeframe

83

98.8%

Page 49

Requests
Received

26

100.0%

98%

70

Place

100%

36
9

Complete in Statutory

100%

40

People

Reported to IG
within 24 hours

8

98%

8

Place

100%

24

Shared Requests Received

9

Complete in Statutory

100%

WMPF

100%

2

5

100%

100%

Education

19

2

WMPF

100%

0

People

100%

0

Place

Requests Completed within statutory

Requests Completed within statutory

0

0%

18

Shared Requests Received

3

Complete in Statutory

100%

100%

0

WMPF

0%

0

2016/2017

Requests Completed within statutory

Requests Completed within statutory

2017/2018 (to date)

2016/2017

100%

100.0%

Requests Completed within statutory

Requests Completed within statutory

99%

0

Incident Type

15

8

7
4

3

4
1

Q2 17/18

0

Place

People

WMPF

21

18

18

14

18

9

Q1
17/18

Q4
16/17

0

0

15/16

Q3

Corruption or inability to recover
electronic data

0

0

0

0

Disclosed in error

16

7

18

17

Lost in transit

0

0

0

0

Lost or stolen hardware

1

2

0

0

Lost or stolen paperwork

0

0

3

0

Non-secure Disposal - Hardware

0

0

0

0

Non-secure Disposal - Paperwork

0

0

0

0

Other DPA Principle 7 incident

0

0

0

0

Other Non-Principle 7 incident

1

0

0

0

Technical security failing (including
hacking)

0

0

0

1

Uploaded to website in error

0

0

1

0

16

9

0

Q2
Q1
Q4
Q3
17/18 17/18 16/17 16/17

Q3 16/17

Impact Risk Rating

14

13

2

1
Q4 16/17

Corporate

19

2

1

Q1 17/18

Quarterly Incident Occurances Comparison
22

24 of the 26 EIR requests received were
valid requests and all (100%) were
responded to within the statutory 20-day
timeframe.

0%

9

3

83 requests were received for Data
Protection this quarter. All but one request
was responded to within the 40-day statutory
timeframe, which equates to a 99% response
rate for the quarter. This was due to
information being received late by the
relevant business area

99%

0%

Incidents by Directorate

7

18

2017/2018 (to date)

Housing

0%

251 requests were received for Freedom of
Information. All but two valid requests were
responded to within the statutory 20-day
timeframe, which equates to a 99% response
rate. This was the result of one late
submission of information and one request
where there was a query at authorisation,
resulting in a delay in issuing the final
response to the requester

99.9%

100%

0

Q2

2016/2017

99%

Housing

0%

Education

Serious Breaches

18

13

2017/2018 (to date)

Housing

Requests received and percentage complete within statutory timeframe
Corporate

Incident Recording
Incidents in
Quarter 2

100%

Education

Requests received and percentage complete within statutory timeframe
Corporate

Environment Information Regulation
Completed within
Statutory
Timeframe

People

Shared Requests Received

Data Protection
Requests
Received

2017/2018

Requests received and percentage complete within statutory timeframe

Freedom of Information
Requests
Received

Quarter Two

0

0

0

0

Q2 17/18

0

0

0

1

Q1 17/18

Low

Low/Medium

0

0

2

0

Q4 16/17

Medium

Medium/High

0
Q3 16/17

High

0

0

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 7

Cabinet (Performance
Management) Panel
4 December 2017
Report title

New Outcomes Based Accountability
Performance Framework and WV Insight Portal
Update

Decision designation

AMBER

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Milkinder Jaspal
Governance

Key decision

No

In forward plan

No

Wards affected

All

Accountable director

Keith Ireland, Managing Director

Originating service

Insight and Performance, Communications

Accountable employee(s)

Ian Fegan
Tel
Email
Helena
Kucharczyk
Tel
Email

Report to be/has been
considered by

Head of Service - Communications
01902 554286
Ian.Fegan@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Insight and Performance Manager
01902 555440
Helena.Kucharczyk@wolverhampton.gov.uk

N/A

Recommendations for noting:
The Cabinet (Performance Management) Panel is recommended to:
1. Note progress to date and endorse the continuing implementation of the Council’s new
outcome-based corporate performance framework.
2. Note progress to date and endorse the development of the new WV Insight website.

Page 51

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

1.0

Purpose

1.1

The purpose of this report is to update Cabinet (Performance Management) Panel on the
progress that has been made to implement a new outcome-based corporate performance
framework and a new WV Insight website to replace Wolverhampton in Profile and
provide an easily accessible, user-friendly city data portal.

2.0

Background

2.1

As outlined in the previous reports, the Council is currently in the process of rolling out
and embedding an Outcome-Based Accountability (OBA) and Outcome-Based Budgeting
(OBB) approach to business planning and performance monitoring (see appendix 1 for
definitions).

2.2

OBA and OBB will help underpin the organisation’s approach to strategic planning,
ensuring decisions are evidence-based, explicitly linked to corporate priorities and
delivery and success is measurable.

2.3

This is a major cultural change for the organisation and will take a number of years to
fully embed. Work is being carried out in stages to ensure that the principles are fully
embedded within the day-to-day work and decision-making of officers, managers and
leaders.

2.4

The OBA project team have been working through a step-by-step process (based on
national best practice) with heads of service to ensure that they understand key
principles (through one-to-one presentations), support them in identifying service
outcomes (through one-to-one workshops) and help build data processes (through
workbooks) to measure them.

3.0

Overview

3.1

The City of Wolverhampton Council’s approach to OBA and OBB involves the delivery of
several products, tools and processes. These include:







An outcome-based City of Wolverhampton Council corporate plan with clear links to
the City’s Vision 2030
A suite of the ‘Top 100’ corporate outcome performance indicators based on a
combination of nationally-agreed and local priorities which demonstrate delivery of,
and performance against, the objectives outlined in the corporate plan.
Service plans with clear outcomes and outputs that link back to the corporate plan
A clear understanding of costs and resources that go into delivering outcomes
A replacement for the Wolverhampton in Profile website (to be called WV Insight)
which provides comparable data at ward, city and regional level that allows city and

Page 52

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]




4.0

council performance to be understood in the context of regional and statistical
comparators.
A new ward portal for City of Wolverhampton Councillors providing local data which
helps them better support and service the needs of their local constituents.
A new City of Wolverhampton Council Insight and Performance strategy which
supports evidence-based decision-making and accountability.

Progress so far (including presentation)
Outcome-based accountability

4.1

As detailed by the head of corporate communication in a verbal update to Cabinet
(Performance Management) Panel in September 2017, the OBA project team has
recruited two temporary analysts to support delivery of the project.

4.2

Since then, steady progress has been made. Back in June 2017, in terms of head of
service engagement, 77% of presentations and 28% of workshops had been completed
or scheduled. By 21 November, 100% of presentations and 100% of workshops had
been completed.

4.3

The process has involved engagement with 227 senior managers and key employees
across the organisation.

4.4

The project team are currently collating and analysing service data, provided by
managers ready for visualisation as dashboards to show achievements against
outcomes. Over 1000 indicators have been identified.

4.5

The indicators have been reviewed and considered in the context of national, city-wide
and local corporate plan priorities to create a ‘top 100’ list of key corporate performance
indicators which demonstrate delivery of the Corporate Plan objectives. These indicators
are currently being reviewed by senior managers prior to approval by Strategic Executive
Board (SEB) and Cabinet (Performance Management) Panel.

4.6

It is proposed that these top-level, strategic indicators will be measured quarterly,
reviewed by SEB and Cabinet (Performance Management) and made available to the
public.

4.7

At an operational level, more detailed service performance frameworks are being
developed based on the indicators identified through the OBA work. These performance
frameworks will be developed on a service by service basis and will provide heads of
service and senior managers with a structured overview of performance within their
areas. This approach fits with the draft insight and performance strategy which is
currently in development (see diagram at appendix 2).

Page 53

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

4.8

Both strategic and operational performance indicators will be visualised using a new
software tool which the insight and performance team have identified and tested Microsoft Power BI. This is an accessible and user-friendly tool that integrates with other
Microsoft products currently used within the organisation (Excel, Word, Outlook,
Dynamics, PowerPoint). It is quicker to deploy and will help the Council reduce
consultancy costs. It will also enable more ‘self-service’ considerable freeing up analyst
time to undertake more complex analysis to support planning and decision making.

4.9

Whist QlikView will still be used for the most complex performance dashboards that pull
data from multiple sources and big databases, the council’s outcome-based performance
model will largely be built in Microsoft PowerBI. This will reduce longer-term costs and
improve internal skills and analytical capabilities. An example of the PowerBI dashboard
developed for the skills and inclusion portfolio board will be demonstrated during the
presentation.

4.10

There is evidence that the project is delivering culture change. The Insight and
Performance team have seen an increase in requests to support service performance
improvement and management with dashboards for projects and service areas. It
highlights the increasing recognition that existing performance reporting can be
improved.
Ward Portal / WV Insight

4.11

SEB, in conjunction with senior Councillors, requested that a portal is developed for
councillors and employees which gives access to key performance information and data
about the city and provides a ‘one stop shop’ for councillors to receive information about
their wards.

4.12

The nature of the portal, the data required and proposed technical solutions are shared
with three other products (Outcome-based Accountability (OBA) view and update tool,
the Insight and Performance Portal, Local Information System redesign – Wolverhampton
in Profile) that are in the pipeline to be delivered over the coming months, so it is
proposed that the four products are delivered within one plan, with priority being given to
the councillor ward portal. This will ensure consistency, data integration and efficiency
enabling all four products to be delivered at a faster pace than previously planned.

4.13

The project will:



consolidate relevant data from multiple sources into a single place providing ward,
constituency, regional and national data.
systemise integrating data alongside the policies, strategies and documents for which
the data is pertinent – for instance, life expectancy data presented in a citywide

Page 54

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]






context alongside links and reference to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
(JSNA).
provide data to support councillors to understand their communities, and present this
data in a user-friendly and accessible way.
enable an improved data and information offer by which the organisation can become
more intelligence-led in its decision making.
provide a mechanism for officers, councillors, businesses and the public to interact
with data using dashboards and analytics.
Lay the foundations for Wolverhampton’s approach to open data which is being led
by the Public Service Reform programme.

4.14

A small project team has been established and the lead analyst has drawn together a list
of 140 data sets, from local and national systems, to populate the new system. These are
based on the following categories:
 Crime and safety
 Deprivation
 Education and skills
 Employment and economy
 Health and well-being
 Housing
 Population
 Social care
 Transport and neighbourhoods.

4.15

The dashboards for the data listed above will be built using Microsoft PowerBi.

4.16

A small councillor group has been established to help shape the ongoing user
requirement and advise on the project.

5.0

Next Steps

5.1

Confirm the Council’s OBA strategic indicators and begin building the PowerBI
performance dashboards.

5.2

Based on above, report on third quarter corporate performance to SEB and Cabinet
Performance (Management) Panel in March 2018.

5.3

Develop OBA service performance plans and embed with service managers and their
teams, reportable monthly or quarterly to directorate leadership team meetings.

5.4

Finalise the Council’s new Insight and Performance Strategy.

Page 55

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

5.5

Confirm the data to be accessible on the council new Ward portal and WV Insight and
begin to build the site infrastructure and PowerBI dashboards.

6.0

Impact on Wolverhampton Council and / or city

6.1

Improved effectiveness and efficiency by improving business planning, evidence-based
decision making, organisational consistency, standards and performance in this area and
reducing duplication.

6.2

Improved transparency of business planning, creating opportunities for more effective
scrutiny and greater accountability.

7.0

Financial implications

7.1

The outcome based accountability performance framework and the WV insight website
will be funded from existing budgets within the Corporate Directorate and specific funds
from the Transformation Reserve.
[MH/24112017/W]

8.0

Legal implications

8.1

There are no direct legal implications.
[RB/24112017/N]

9.0

Equalities implications

9.1

Underpinning some of the principles of OBA and OBB is ensuring good practice in
customer engagement. Additionally, the need to complete a detailed equalities analysis
in putting forward any business case will be embedded into the new processes.

10.0

Environmental implications

10.1

There are no direct environmental implications

11.0

Human resources implications

11.1

There are no direct human resources implications. However, the implementation of OBA
and OBB principles will enable, and be underpinned by, robust workforce development.

12.0

Corporate landlord implications

12.1

There are no direct corporate landlord implications

Page 56

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

13.0

Schedule of background papers
13 September 2016 - City Scorecard, Corporate Plan and Outcomes Based Planning
Update (Scrutiny Board)
19 September 2016 - City Scorecard, Corporate Plan and Outcomes Based Planning
Update (Cabinet Performance Management Panel)
17 January 2017 - Outcomes Based Accountability – progress so far and next steps
12 June 2017 - Outcomes Based Accountability and Outcome-Based Budgeting Update

Page 57

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Appendix 1
Theory and Principles of Outcomes Based Accountability and Outcomes Based
Budgeting
a1. OBA and OBB are essentially methods of using performance data to do two things: (1) to
monitor systematically the delivery of services; and (2) to develop budget plans that show
how spending makes a difference to people’s lives.
a2. Both OBA and OBB are based on widely accepted principles of good practice in public
sector service delivery.
a3. OBA is an approach to planning services and managing their performance that focuses
attention on the results – or outcomes – that services aim to achieve. It is entirely
consistent with the approach put together by the National Audit Office, Audit Commission,
Cabinet Office, Office for National Statistics and HM Treasury.
a4. It is a way of securing strategic and cultural change: moving organisations away from a
focus on ‘efficiency’ and ‘process’ as measures of value in their services, and towards
achieving better outcomes for the adults, children and families in their communities as the
primary purpose of their organisation and its employees.
a5. Further distinguishing features of the approach are:





The use of simple and clear language
The collection and use of relevant data
The involvement of stakeholders, including service users and the wider community, in
achieving better outcomes
The distinction between accountability for performance of services or programmes on
the one hand, and accountability for outcomes among a particular population on the
other.

a6. The OBA model has been used in the US and several countries worldwide as a way of
structuring planning to improve outcomes and services for whole populations.
a7. In England, the Local Government Improvement and Development (LG Improvement and
Development, formerly the Improvement and Development Agency (IDeA)) has invested
significant resources over several years to support local authorities (LAs) in implementing
the OBA approach.
a8. Although reliable survey data is hard to come by, somewhere in the region of between 2530% of local authorities in England have used or are using OBA approaches in at least
part of their organisation.
a9. The diagram below shows how OBA derives performance measures by thinking about
service delivery from the point of view of the quality and quantity of effort and effect.

Page 58

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

a10. The distinction between quantity and quality is an OBA staple: how much did we do versus
how well we did it. The effort and effect distinction is the difference between how hard we
tried and whether we made a difference to the lives of our community.
a11. Putting the quantity vs quality and effort vs effect together creates the three OBA universal
performance measurement categories:




How much did we do?
How well did we do it?
Is anyone better off?

a12. While OBA focuses on using the demonstration of outcomes to monitor effective service
delivery, Outcomes Based Budgeting (OBB) focuses on developing budgets and financial
decisions based on the relationship between resources (funding and staff time) and the
difference spending is expected to make to the quality of life for the children, adults and
families who live in our community (outcomes) – e.g Cost vs Value
a13. OBB is quite a radical new approach to budgeting. Traditionally budget planning focusses
on how money will be spent – it links resources with inputs, however OBB, like OBA,
focusses explicitly on outcomes – it asks the question ‘How will the money we propose to
spend make a difference to the lives of the children, adults and families in our community?’
a14. As a management and budgeting tool, it lays emphasis on the importance of evaluating
the impact of council services and provides a clear way of estimating the extent to which
programmes and services provide value for money making performance management an
integral part of budgeting and financial decision making

Page 59

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

a15. The diagram below shows how OBA and OBB intersect to provide a holistic, outcomes
based way of making decisions.

a16. Budgets, and by implication, business plans, are a tangible expression of a Council’s
priorities, performance, decisions and intentions. The OBA and OBB approach to business
planning and decision making enables officers and elected members to see how
programmes and services are aligned with the Council’s priorities as set out in the
corporate plan.
a17. The approach improves transparency (i.e. scrutiny) by enabling stakeholder participation
in the budgeting process and ensuring decisions are based on evidence, and improves
accountability by enabling officers and elected members to establish the extent to which
budget objectives have been achieved.

Page 60

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Appendix 2: Draft strategic corporate performance framework

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

